


2 MILESTONE. for iwo
cenluries this morker has
1old" trovelers thot 531
miles loy belween this cor-

e sl
capitol. The: milestone wos
erected in 1771,

3 GRACE EPISCOPAL
CHURCH. The first v

quartied from o nearby hil
s o git from George
Hodges who's burial plot is
Iocoted 1o the rear of the
Church,

4 MAIN ST. View of the Moin Strest looking north from an area
just south of Quobaug Avenve. This wos the principol avenue
of the town ot the fime of its early seiflement in 1713. Known
as "the Eight-Rod Wy it s over 100 f. wide, lned wilh rees
on both sides ond in the spring, the scent of the crabapple
blossoms fill the air. Upon the centrol highwoy were located
chiefly the house lots of the English setilers. Many older homes
siill line the Main Street. %

atb ARG

5 SITE OF THE JOHNSON (JANSEN) MASSACRE. The
Massacre of the Johnson fomily during on Indian raid on August
25, 1696 brough the firs Huguenot selament 1o an end, The
stone marker ploced in 1875, beors the iniils of John Johnson
‘and his three children, Peter, Andrew, and Mary who were
Kiled. Fortunately Mrs. Johnson ond her cousin escoped.

7 HUGUENOT OAK the lost fving evidence of Huguenol
presence in Oxlord located on the corner of Huguenol Road
ond Russell Lane is the only Huguenot Ook: left standing. Eorly.
wiilings suggest that the Huguenot Qs were used os o guide
tothe Fort.

MENT ond FRENCH
FORT. The Huguenot
Memorial Sociely erected o
cross and pedestal
monument fo the memory of
the Huguenot seMlers on the
sita of the originol Fort thot
wos constructed in 1686,

9 BRIDGE AT SAC-
CARAPPA, Buill by
Joshua Stockwell in 1792,
il adjacent 1o the roceway
was bul for the purpose of
moking nais. A house,
blacksmith's shop and

the north side of the brook.

10 LEARNED DAVIS HOUSE, buill in 1785 is of unique %

design. Learned Dovis operaled a noi mill powered by o brook
fed by Soccarappa Pond nearby. Davis was o stole represen.
folive, selectman, ossessor and member of the school comit.
tee.



13 CAMP HILL. A sione
marker o the hil erected
by General Ebenezer
Leamed Chopter, D. A. R.
marks the site of the comp
of Colonel Nathon Rice's
Regiments of the New
Englond Division of Adant's
Provisionol Ay in 1799
ond 1800, The camp wos

|
N visited - by  Alexander
G Viomitonin 00,

CLARA BARTON'S SUMMER HOME. Clara Barton fved
10 be 90 years old, living ol her home in Moryland during the
utumn, winter, ond spring. The summers of her lost 10 yeors
were alnos! olways spen! of her home ot No. 28 Chorlion
Streel.

PUBLIC LIBRARY. Built in 1903 - 1904 os a gift from
Mr. Charles Larned. The sicined-glass window above The main
entrance shows the deporture of Pigrims from Holland in 1620,
A fine Historical exhibit is on display in the Librory’s Museum.
Thére are sixteen smaller stained-glass windows of inferest and
the framed original deed 1o Oxford:

15 FIRST CONGREGA-
TIONAL CHURCH. The
Congregalionol Church was
the firsi “mesting-house””

service wos in 1721, The
present house is the fourth

g e 4 dedicated - in 1829,
HODGES VILLAGE DAM AND RESERVOIR - A Federal stained:glasswindow. on
Flood Conlrol Project was completed in 1960 at the cost of the south woll of the church
$4,500,000, bringing much needed. flood proteciion 1o the wos_dedicated_in. memory
French River Basin. This inslallotion is locoled near fhe original of Miss Clora Barlon in
Hodges Mil and dom that manufaciured, perhaps, the. first 1913,

flonnelette sheets and virgin wool blankets in America.




LD BURYING GROUND the fist cemelery in Oxford
now called South Cemeleryl. Ebenezer Leared is buried here.
“Ebenezer Leorned became quile aclive in lhe palriol cause as
3 Colonel, loer as o Gensalin the Revoluiion. Loared ond his
o marched on the Lexinglon Alorm, fought of Bunker Hil, the
Svacuofion of Boston and Valley Forge: On April 2, 1777,
Congress voted. his _appointivent 0 Brigadier. Generol.
Ehenezer Leomed served Oxlord os Selectman, Moderator,
Assessor, ond Justce of the Peace. Lsarad’s father, was one
of the iy English setlers in 1713 and s olso buried here. The
Rev. Campbell First Mirister of the Congregational Church,
who served for 45 yeors as. posior, teacher, jusice, is buried
close by, Many oiher interesling siones can be found in this

17 JOSLIN PARK. This lond, o gift from Dr. Elion P. Josin, 19 {ARA BARTON BIRTHPLACE. Clora Barton, founder of
Tormerly wos the localion of one of the first pubic schools in G s b i 1 hothaTon Dec 05
Orfeid ot v e el 1621:She hos baen enered into the Holl of Fame for Groot
SR el e W S . Americans in 1976 as ifs 100th membar. A postage stowp in her
recogtizss he veterans of tho Spanish: Americon YYOr. honor was issued in 1948. The houss is open to the public by.

appoiniment ond on speclied days. i-is on.the Nalional
gister of Historic Places.

A canp for diabelic gils 15 localed on the properly. Il wos
founded by Dr. Efiot P. Jost, o viorld reknowied speciolis in
he reaimen of diobetes melifus.

18 NORTH CEMETERY. Miss Clora Borion founder of fhe
Ameicon Red Cross, ond Dr. Eliolt P. Joslin noted in the.

Htreatment of Diobetes, are buried in this cemetery. 20 NORTH OXFORD BAPTIST CHUIRCH. In Moy of 1847,

this church wos dedicated to [l the spiritual needs of a growing

= communiy.of worshippers. A spie, 95 feet in heighi, originoly



OTHER NOTES OF
HISTORICAL INTEREST

No formal act of incorporaion of Oxford has been found.
Is frst mention was on Moy 31,1693 when "Daniel Allen of
Oxford” was chosen representative 1o the General Court. The
site of the town is near the middle of the territory known, in
1630, 0 “Nipmuck”, “Nipmug” or “Nepmug Counlry” The
first movements towards a sefilement in this section was made
in February, 1680. :

On Moy 11, 1681, the General Court impowered Wiliom
Stoughion and Joseph Dudley 1o inspect “the maiter of the
fand” and inquire info the voiidily of the Indion tles acling under
authorily of the Court. These gentlemen loler purchased certoin
Indion lands and the deeds of convenonce, daled February 19,
1681.82, were presenied to the Courl May 27, 1682, and by
it confirmed. History states that this grant was roffied to Dudley
& Company Janvory 11, 1688, The place was named Oxford
after the city of thol name in Englondi The plan comprehended
about 65 square mis, including, besides the present Oxford,
the lorger part of Charlion; about ona-fourlh of Aubur, one-
fith of Dudley ond several square miles of the norfheosterly
portion of Southbridge. On Decomber 8, 1731, the farms of
Josioh-and Theodore Kingsbury and adjoining lond of fsaoc
lomed were annexed 1o Oxford. When Dudisy- was  in-
corporated Febiuary 2, 1732, a parl of Oxford wos included.
On November 22, 1734, on peliion of the town, Dudley’s farm
wos amnexed 10 Oxford. On Noverber 21, 1754, the distrct
of Charlion was established, which took from Oxlord allof the
original gront lying west of o fine one mie west of “Vilage
fine.” On June 23, 1773, cenain fomikes “were erected inlo a
precinet” called the South parish of Worcester, ond the districl
became the fown of Ward Aprl 10, 1778 lhow Aubur), On
Jonary 9, 1789, the eslales of fsaoc Moffit and two others
were amexed 1o Oxlord from Charlton.On February 18,
1793 a par of Suflon was oanexed. On January 6, 1807, the
Oxlord South Gore wos annexed, but was loler included n the
town of Webster, incorporated March 6, 1832 On February
13, 1809, 1wenly-six acres belonging fo Amosa Kingsbury
were annexed. On March' 22, 1838, “the Oxlord North
Gore” (738 acres) wos onnexed; s lay belween the norih
line of Oxford, as it then existed, and Leicoster south fne.
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